CHARLES WANTZ BUILDING
21-27 EAST MAIN STREET

One of Westminster's most idiosyncratic buildings, the Wantz
Building, rises up three stories in 4 sections in the heart of the busi-
ness area of Westminster. Charles Valentine Wantz was a scion of a very
important local family (several close and distant ancestors were, for
example, judges of the Orphans' Court). Wantz doubtless inherited some
money, and parlayed this into quite a fortune - if the building he built
reflects his economic status, as he doubtless wished that it would. Wantz
made his money as a wholesale and retail tobacconist. A 1912 newspaper
article says that Westminster was known throughout the State for its
cigars, and the Wantz was the pioneer in the business. In 1882, Wantz
abandoned his rented quarters and moved his factory to the eastern half
of the present building, which was built in that year. As Wantz prospered,
he doubled the size of the building, adding the two western sections in
1890. According to Wantz's grandaughter, Mrs. David Taylor, Wantz originally
planned to have the buildings two storeis in height but, as a loyal mason,
he added the third story as a meeting room for that organization.
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The Wantz building, it proudly proclaims on its third *floor
plaques, faces the north side of East Main Street about I80' east of
that street's intersection with Railrcad Avenue in the heart of down-
town Westminster. The building aives the appearance of being composed
in four, approximately eaual, 3-story sections divided bv Tuscan red
brick pilasters; each pilaster is tonped by a curved, white, wooden
band which follows the contour of the curved, red, terra cotta tiled
roof. These curved white bands have a (somewhat ironical) colonial
shell motif at their base and are topped by bulb-snindel! finials. Three
narrow brackets “support' the roof between each pilaster, with a cusped
band running beneath the brackets. Each section has a different shoo
on its ground flocor (shops having frontage of approximately €4 feet).
The western Two shons, at present occunied by lark Alan, and Eshelman
Shoes, appear to te little changed from their original appearance, at
least as revealed in an 1887 engraving of the shops; the eastern two
shoos present modern alass and aluminum fronts (however, perhaps These
fronts are merely tacked over the original fabric).

The building, which superficially presents a picture of total
unity, seems to have been built in two separate sections; Wantz acqguired
the land at different times, the already mentioned 1887 engraving shows
the building of two sections (rather than 4), and other contemporarv ad-
vertising implies an exnandinag buildina. So, given that the building
was built in halfs, it is fairly easy to establish that the eastern 2
sections are the older. The differences tetween the 2 sactions consist
entirely of upper story window +treatment - the eastern 2 sections have
4 closelv - spaced windows ner floor ner section, whereas the western 2
sections have 3 windows per floor per section. Second floor windows
have similar treatment in all 4 sections, however, being tall, double-
nung sash windows (the lower sash consisting of a large single sheet of
glass, the upper sash is a smaller central section of glass surrounded
bv bands of smaller paneg. The wooden window-surrounds are intricately
carved, with a pelleted band running across the top of each window. All
windows on both the second and third floors have dark sitls. Third floor
windows are identical to those on the second floor, i.e., there are four,
similarly-enframed, double-hung sash windows in each section of the east-
ern half, and three in each section of the western half. However, on the
third floor the upper sashes are of stained, leaded glass.

The building has virtually no surface that is free from decora-
tion. In the band between the second and Tthird stories, each section has
identical, naturalistic design of pressed or molded brick (or perhaps of
terra cotta) surrounded by a band of perforated bricks, rather resembling
a cribbage board. The pilasters have, just below the tops of the second
and third floor windows, a similar aerated design. Above the third floor
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Wantz building is one of the finest examples of what might
Le called Victorian commercial mentality in the City, if not in the en-
tire area. Commercial structures built in the late 19th and early 20th
centuries appear, at least in Westminster, to be freer to deviate from
long-establish building standards than do residential structures. If one
wished to read a significance into this (perhaps a significance that does
not exist), one would be tempted to wonder if a comparable attitude existed
(or exists) in personal behavior - does this difference in building treat-
ment reflect a difference in ethics as well - was there a comparable easy
aoing business ethic as opposed to a stricter domestic ethic? Certainly
far greater liberties were taken with such buildings as the Wantz building,
the Babylon Building, the "White Palace", the Charles Carroll Hotel, and
the Albion Hotel than were taken with contemporaneous residential structures.
These commercial buildings are all extremely idiosyncratic, and appear not
to follow any known rules, while the houses of the era (such as 0! East
iain Street, which Wantz built for himself or 256 East Main Street) are
much more reserved, and adhere strictly +4¢ the century-old standards of
behavior. For all the intense behavioral freedom evidenced in the commer-
cial buildings, there is generally speaking, a corresponding strict con-
formity in the homes these merchants tuilt for themselves, and in the homes
their customers built,

Charles Valentine YWantz was a scion of a fairly important local
family (several close and distant ancestors were, for example, judges of
the Orphans' Court). Wantz doubtless inherited some money, and narlayed
this into quite a fortune - if the building he tuilt reflects his economip
8 status as he doubtliess wished that it would. Wantz made his money as
a wholesale and retail tobacconist. The American Sentinel, a local paper
of large circulation, had a long article on Wantz in its December 8, [2]2
edition. |In this article it is stated that,

There was a time when very few cigars were used in
“Jestminster and when nearly every man vou met chew-
ed tobacco. HNow, a large number of cigars are used
and the chewers of tobacco are becoming fewer....A
large number of good cigars are consumed vearly by
the men of Yestminster and the City has become known
for the character of the cigars manufactured here.
Cigar making on a large scale began in this City

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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windows, and below the band around the brackets, is a centrally-placed
plaque (possibly of brick, possibly of iron) with WANTZ BUILDING in
rellief.

The east and west facades are blind and display the northward
sloping shed roof that covers all 4 sections.
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in the vyear 1389 and !ir. Charles V. Yantz, of this Citv,

was the pioneer in the business.”
The article coes on to discuss his pedigree and his early starts in business,
and the numerous changes of location he was forced to make. Aprarently, his
earlv stores were sometimes thought of as dens of corruption, being loitering
places for the Citv's vouth. The paper notes, "Just imagine 2 to |5 voung
men all smoking pipes in that room at the same time and doing their utmost to
make all the smoke possible. |Is it anv wonder that r., Cassell (fhe clerk),
who was afflicted with asthme, was forced{to flee and leave the store to the
tencder mercies of the bovs?" The article also notes that Wantz would cive
away one importfed breech-loading shotgun to each purchaser of a thousand
cigars, and that, over the vears, he nave away over 5,"M02 of these shotquns.

The paper savs that in 1382, Wantz abandoned his rentecd quarters
and moved his factorvy to "the present handsome one he built that vear. ‘lere
he fitted up one of the finest retail stores in the state. The walls are
paperad with sample cigar labels, no two teing exactly alike, ancd when com-
nleted it presented the most unique acpearance of any cigar store irn the
United States. ©Cne of the trade journals cutlished a full page descrintion

of i+." ‘Wantz, the man, must have been quite a lccal character. A bag, in
possession of the County Historical Society, that was used tv Wantz in his
store (presumably as a tobacco pouch) has him depicted as a camel with his
face, (complete with Napolean !1!| beard and mustache), topped by a Boumi

Temple fez. He, apparently, took no objection to a rhyme that nrobably

gnjovad wide circulation around the turn of the century;

A question in tThe mind of man

Aoout our good friend Wantz

Is how on earth he stuffs his qut

Ancd still keeps up his nants.

The nressure of nis tlood is 'Ow’

I+ has The doctors heaten

To figure out what has become

Zf all the stuff he's eaten.
Wantz was alsc a man of some civic intferest, being influqnfial in the found-
ing of the librarv and phone company, (fthe phone company's first headauarters
was,in fact, on the secord floor of his buildina) and having served, of course,
on The hoards of several local banks.

3ecause ‘“antz bought the land for these buildinas, and because he
tuilt them in sections, title information on the rroperty is more than a little
comiiicated. The Wantz Buildirng, as an entiretv, sits on 3 separate parcels
of land. The first portion consists of £,230 sguare feet which VWantz bought
in 1883, from Josephus 3ankhart. The metes and hounds descrintion in this
deed (dated January 25, 1383, and recorded in Carroll County Deed Book 52,
Page 214) indicates a parcel 35' by 198'. Bankhart acot the land on 'arch
29, 1872 from Philio H. L. I!'ers (51/375) who qgot the land from . Scott
Qobert's trustee, on fFebruary £, 1364 (3C/366).

The second piece Wantz bought was a 6" by 198' piece just to the
east of the earlier section (Wantz bought this February 27, 1833, Deed 58/
313). Wantz bought the strip from the vestminster Fire Company, which then
had its Fire Hall on this side of “ain Street, across the street from its
nresent location; Wantz was here merely buying party wall rights. These 2
pieces of land are the land upon which the first, or eastern, half of the

building was built.
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Then, on May 22, 1889, wWantz bought the other half of lot 2 from
rasnabiah Haines (deed 69/537), and built the other half of the Wantz build-
ing. From then on, all three parcels were treated as one. (Title informa-
tion for all properties goes back to the teginnings of the 19th century,
but, as it is the late Victorian structure that interests us, there seems
less point than usual in tracing the properties' history back into the
early fog-bound history of the City.) Wantz and his wife, Caroline Virginia
Wantz, sold the lots on April Fool's Day 1219 +to Jesse C. Sharrer (134/65).
The tand stayed in the Sharrer family, Jesse selling shares in it to his
three sons in various transactions, until title vested in liathan Weinstock
on July 26, 1949, (202/387). Weinstock kept title for a aquarter century,

until he sold to the buiiding's present owner on June 7, 1974, in deed
572/55.
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